MINUTES OF WORKSHOP MEETING
DOWNERS GROVE, ILLINOIS
JANUARY 23, 2001

Mayor Krajewski called the Workshop meeting of the Village Council of the Village of Downers
Grove to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Committee Room of the Village Hall.

Present: Mayor Brian Krgjewski; Commissioners Marilyn Schnell, Thomas Sisul, Michael
Gilbert, Sue McConnéll; Village Manager Michael McCurdy; Village Attorney
Daniel Blondin; Village Clerk April Holden

Absent: None

Vigtors: Press. Susie Gura, Downers Grove Reporter

Residents. Mary and John Przybyl, 1227 Gilbert; Mary and Jeffrey Mack, 1111
Gilbert; Mark Zabloudil, 620 39" Street; Tom Julian, 6223 Springside; Martin Tully, 3678
Venard; Marilynn Gerloff, 4241 Highland; Vickie Nissen, Downers Grove School District #58;
Sue Davison, 4336 Florence; Kevin Devine, 22523 Prairie Crossing, Plainfield; Scott Krafthefer,
4937 Oakwood; Perry Erhart, 3825 Downers Drive; William McCool, 1132 Curtiss, Margaret
Adams, 1300 Turvey; Philip Howard, 1115 Gilbert; Robert Lang, 4079 Sterling; Jim Fechner,
1141 Curtiss; Phil Cullen, 5122 Main; Jim McBride, 1217 Gilbert; Mark Kupelka, 1200 Gilbert;
Waring and Ellen Webb, 1210 Gilbert; Al Hank, Moore Properties, 315 Quail Ridge; Stephen
Daniels, 840 Valley View; Ross Johnson, 1311 Gilbert; Linda Kunze, Downtown Management,
1015 Curtiss; Pat Wenthe, 1316 Grant; Mike Saldak, 1137 Curtiss, Jm Patchett, Conservation
Design Forum, 324 North Y ork Road; Ken Willis, Director, Conservation Land Stewardship; Pat
Burke, 1320 Oak Hill

Staff: Jerry Sprecher, Deputy Village Manager; Rick Ginex, Police Chief; Sue
Brassfield, Grants Coordinator; Bob Jungwirth, Village Engineer; Mike Baker, Assistant to the
Village Manager; Marty Lyons, Director, Financia Services; Stan Balicki, Administrative
Assistant, Public Works; Brian Pabst, Director of Redevelopment; Ken Rathje, Director of
Planning Services

Mayor Krajewski explained that Council Workshop meetings are held the second and fourth
Tuesdays at 6:30 p.m. The meetings are video taped live and for later cable-cast over cable
channdl 6.

The Workshop meeting is intended to provide Council and the public with an appropriate forum
for informal discussion of any items intended for future Council consideration or just for general
information. No formal action is taken at Workshop mestings.

The public isinvited to attend and encouraged to comment or ask questions in an informal

manner on any of the items being discussed or on any other subject. The agenda is created to
provide a guideline for discussion.

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 1



MANAGER
1. Bids:

a. CBD Sound System. The Manager asked that this item be removed from the agenda.
He said this item would be reviewed at alater time.

b. Police Uniforms. The Manager said two bids were received for police uniforms. Ray
O'Herron was the low bid, but because of performance problems encountered in the past
he recommended the bid be awarded to Kale Uniforms in the amount of $34, 671.50.

Regarding police equipment, three bids were received. Ray O’ Herron was the low bidder, but he
recommended the bid be awarded to Constable Equipment in the amount of $9,253.50.

He said this would be placed on the February 6 Consent Agenda

2. Lacey Creek Restoration Project. The Manager said the Village has been working on this
project for anumber of yearsto restore Lacey Creek, atributary to part of the DuPage River
System. He asked Jerry Sprecher to address this matter.

Jerry Sprecher, Deputy Village Manager, said this goes back to 1995 when the design
consultants, Conservation Design Forum, and the Orchard Brook Homeowners Association
started the preliminary investigations toward necessary improvements to the wetland and stream
bank corridor extending from Highland Avenue to the Tollway. The Village entered into an
agreement with the Orchard Brook Homeowners Association in 1998 and has extended the
agreement for the last two years.

Mr. Sprecher said he was very pleased that last week DuPage County indicated that with some
conditions the project appears ready for permitting. The County has conducted the review and
the Village will issue the permit. Outstanding issues include easements and a Corps of Engineers

permit.

Mr. Sprecher said staff is asking for Council approval to award a contract to Conservation Land
Stewardship in the amount of $537,332 for design/build services that will include the wetland
restoration on both the east and west extremities as well as stream bank stabilization connecting
the two wetlands.

Mr. Sprecher said the Village has worked to secure funding for the project. He asked for
authorization of an intergovernmenta agreement with the DuPage County for funding up to
$140,000. Asa part of this agreement, the County will require the Village to pursue other grants.
He aso asked for authorization for a grant application for C-2000 funds in the amount of
$100,000 from the State of Illinois Department of Natural Resources to be submitted next month.

Mr. Sprecher reviewed the overall funding for the project which totals $599,000 in committed
funds. This funding would provide for the construction project scheduled to take place over the
next year. He said he projects $185,000 of maintenance costs over afive-year period. The
County anticipated the maintenance costs as part of their $140,000 commitment. The Village's
participation would continue to be in the amount of $140,000.

Mr. Sprecher asked Jim Patchett, of Conservation Design Forum to provide an overview of the
project.

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 2



Jim Patchett, President, Conservation Design Forum, said he was joined by Ken Willis, Director
of Conservation Land Stewardship. Conservation Land Stewardship will be responsible for doing
the on-site implementation and restoration work. He said this project includes the pond area west
of Highland Avenue in the Orchard Brook Subdivision and a portion of the tributary to Lacey
Creek that extends into Innisbrook Development. The project will entail about 2,400 feet of
stream bank restoration as well as pond and wetland restoration in the east and west wetland
areas. In addition to the stream corridor and the buffering, there will be approximately 9 Yacres
of prairie and woodland restoration including restoration of approximately 500 trees and shrubs.
Most of the overall work will be completed this year. There will then be ongoing management
and enhancement plantings over the next few years. Approximately 17,000 native plugs will be
installed and seeds will be planted as well.

Regarding the implementation schedule, Mr. Patchett said they plan to start in late February. The
plantings will occur in late spring. All of the construction is scheduled to be completed by the
end of June.

Mayor Krajewski complimented the staff, the Orchard Brook Homeowners Association and
Commissioner Gilbert for their hard work and persistence. He said thisis a restoration project
and the County has the same rules for restoration as for devel opment.

Manager McCurdy said Mr. Sprecher agreed to Sit on a committee to review the County’s
permitting process with the County Department of Environmental Concerns.

The Mayor said future projects need to take into consideration County guidelines as the County
does not recognize all alowable methods.

Commissioner Gilbert said the County deserves thanks for working so hard. He thanked Perry
Erhart for his persistence. He also recognized the contributions of Tom Bennington and Wally
Brown for their efforts. He said this project will finaly go forth.

Commissioner Sisul said he was impressed that this project started with the residents first
identifying and analyzing the problem and then bringing it to the Village. At that point, they did
not know if there would be any commitment by anyone else to participate in this with them.

Commissioner Schnéll said this benefits the Orchard Brook area as well as the entire stream area
including Lyman Woods.

The Mayor said this goes into Innisbrook as well and should help that area.

The Manager said staff is seeking approval for a contract totaling $537,332 with Conservation
Land Stewardship, an affiliate of Conservation Design Forum, for design/build services for the
completion of restoration work. Of that amount, $17,660 is a change order to the original design
services contract with Conservation Design Forum. Staff is also requesting approva of an
intergovernmental agreement with DuPage County for funding up to $140,000 and authorization
to submit a grant application for $100,000 for C-2000 funds. Thiswill be on the February 6
Active Agenda.

3. Landbank Discussion. The Manager said this was workshopped two weeks ago and isa

continuation of the discussions held at that time. He said the Council and staff have received
many comments. He and the Mayor have met with avariety of groups in the community

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 3



including a group of redltors, representatives from the neighborhood as well as the
Downtown Management Board to find a common ground as to how to proceed.

Mayor Krajewski said he, the Manager and staff met with five real estate brokers including
Megan Schroeder, Liz Chaberg, Jan Kopis, George Nicholaou and Larry Musielak. He and the
Manager also met with Wally Brown, a DuPage County Board member who lives on Gilbert
Street, as well as John Przybyl and Jim McBride. A third meeting was held on Saturday with Jim
Russ, Jr., Chairman of the Downtown Management Board, Linda Kunze, Ross Johnson, Wally
Brown, Jim McBride, John Przybyl and Dave Tatterson. The purpose of the meetings was to set
out staff goals. They Mayor said he aso outlined his goals for the area.

The Mayor provided the history of the landbank. 1n 1978 a resolution was passed establishing the
Landbank Policy. The Mayor reviewed the policy. He said the last of the ten parcels was
purchased in 1990.

Four years ago the Council established a TIF district in the downtown in order to pay for the
downtown infrastructure improvements. By way of a dide presentation he described the
construction project costs. He said those costs are amost complete for the infrastructure
expenses. Bonds were secured to pay for the construction costs. The bonds are to be paid back
by the TIF revenues, development and the Capital Projects fund. The Capital Projectsfund is
used for future projects within the Village such as streets, sidewalks, etc. He outlined the effects
of the TIF. If TIF revenues are lower than anticipated, there is greater dependency on the Capital
Projects fund. If higher than anticipated TIF revenues, there would be less dependency on the
Capital Projects funds.

The Mayor said the real estate brokers reported that the landbank is a very valuable piece of land.
He said they were in agreement that they preferred to see townhouses and rowhouses at that
location; however, they said that anything along the railroad tracks in the West suburbsis
desirable, including single-family residences. There are only 81 houses on the market in
Downers Grove. Anything put in that location will be in high demand.

The Mayor said once these properties came off the market, no property taxes have been paid. As
aresult approximately $500,000 has been taken off the tax rolls over the 23 year period the
Village has owned the properties. In addition, the loss in TIF revenues over the past four yearsis
estimated to be between $150,000 and $220,000. Had the landbank properties been disposed of
prior to the TIF, the incremental value is lost to the taxing bodies over the 23-year period of the
TIF. That money cannot be recovered.

The Mayor said density was not considered an issue by any of the groups he met with. The
Downtown Management Board stated that this area is a gateway coming into the downtown and
needs to be esthetically pleasing and fit into the character of the neighborhood. The residents
expressed the same concern. He said the told the groups that his position is that thisis avauable
piece of property. He said he feels the Village has to get some vaue on that property.

The Mayor recommended the Council authorize two RFPs. The first RFP would be for six
properties on Gilbert Street and the Curtiss Street properties asking for proposals for rowhouses
and townhouses. Included in this would be a request to breakout the proposal for Curtiss Street
only. In addition he recommended a new advisory committee to review the structures and
recommend to Council what the design would look like. He described dides of various
structures.

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 4



The Mayor said a second RFP would be sent out to home builders to give them the ability to
submit proposals including reconfigurations of lots and restoration of existing homes or new
developments. He said once the RFPs have been received devel opers would be able to advise the
Village as to the costs and the value of the proposed homes.

The Mayor outlined the primary goalsto: 1) to get out of the landlord business, 2) to ensure the
value of the properties and 3) to control what goes there in terms of appearance. He said
collateral issues include reducing the Concentrated Central Area and determining the status of St.
Joe's Creek.

Commissioner M cConnell said she thought these were great ideas. She said she would liketo
see the Council go forward with them. She said it isimportant to tie the design ideas such as
turn-of-the- century brick structures in the RFP and to try to maintain the ambience of the area
such astrees and green space. She recommended involving the same group of congtituentsin
reviewing the RFP to continue the spirit of cooperation.

Commissioner Gilbert said he supports the plan 100%.

The Mayor said the Village Manager will look into procedures for Requests for Qualifications to
ensure that proposals are received from qualified people.

Commissioner Gilbert asked about the timeframe for the RFPs.

Manager McCurdy said how the RFP is crafted isimportant. He said the processes will take a
number of months. He estimated six to eight weeks to prepare the RFP.

The Mayor suggested looking at what other communities have done.

In response to Commissioner Gilbert, the Manager said the Village will continue to hold all of the
landbank properties until the RFPs are returned.

Commissioner Sisul said he was encouraged by tonight’s presentation. He said the pedestrian
level ambience will be very beneficial to the whole community. He said it isimportant to keep in
mind that thisis being designed for the whole community to put back into the tax rolls something
that will be of benefit to al of the taxing bodies and be worthwhile for everyone. He said heis
very supportive of the project.

Commissioner Schnell said it is important to involve citizens in the processiif it is going to work
correctly. She said that has been done in this instance. She said the proposal tonight takes the
best of all of the stakeholders. She said there is much to be learned from the last workshop and
allows both the Council and the Village to grow. She said citizens have been empowered to be
part of the process, an extremely positive outcome.

Commissioner Schnell said there are many talented citizens who are architects and know about
redesign and building. She recommended getting them involved in the RFP process so that the
RFP can set out what the Village is looking for. She suggested using some of those same people
in architectura review. She said the RFP needs to be specific and needs to outline the concerns
of the residents who live in the area as well as the concerns of the Council. She said the fina
product needs to look like it belongs there. She said she does not want to lose the idea of
rehabbing some of the houses. She said many realtors have told her that Downers Groveisa
great place to buy an old house and rehab it. Returns can be 25% on the value of the house. She

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 5



said it isimportant to be cognizant of the fact that some of the houses could be saved. She said
thisis an important part of the RFP process.

The Mayor said builders will be able to advise the Council if rehabs are an option. He said it
does not bother him whether the outcome is single-family homes, rowhouses or townhouses as
long as it fits in the neighborhood and has value.

The Mayor reiterated that the Council is not deciding issues at a workshop meeting, but is trying
to figure out solutions.

John Przybyl, 1227 Gilbert, thanked the Mayor, Manager and Council for their help. He said the
meeting of the Downtown Management Board was productive aswell. He said the smaller
meetings held last week were very valuable and he recommended incorporating them in the
workshop process. He said the options are well thought out and he thinks they will work out

well. He brought pictures of possible structures to share with the Council.

Phil Howard, 1115 Gilbert, said he rents one of the landbank houses. He asked about the
timeline and the lease provisions.

The Mayor said the Manager was in the process of sending letters to the tenants. The leases
expire May 31, 2001. If the Villageis not ready to dispose of the properties at that time, month-
to-month leases will be extended.

Kevin Devine of Plainfield asked if individuals could submit RFPs for one property. The Mayor
suggested waiting until the RFPs are returned to the Council.

Diane L ewis Callahan, 1307 Gilbert, said she worked in the Planning Department of the Village
at onetime. Sheisa Gilbert Street resident and has been aresidential redltor since 1978. She
said she has some concerns. She said she likes Commissioner Schnell’ s ideas to keep the western
edge single-family residential. She said the most dense use is not necessarily the best for the
community. She expressed concern about St. Joe's creek. Her home backs up to the creek.

Since 1986, they have lost between 1%and 2 feet. She said she is concerned about the effect of
new development on the creek. She said the lots on Gilbert would need to be reconfigured. She
said she would like to see some of the homes retained as single-family.

The Mayor said the Council agreed that the two houses on the west side would stay as they are.
Under discussion are the six houses from 1137 to 1115 Gilbert. With respect to the impact on the
creek, the Mayor said a workshop was held in July 1999 in regard to what could be built on the

property.

The Manager said the understanding is no structures would be built on the pipe that goes under
the ground.

Commissioner Sisul suggested Ms. Cdlahan be sent a copy of the Workshop minutes of July 12,
1999.

The Mayor said an RFP for rowhouses and townhouses needs to include Mr. Mack’ s property at
1111 Gilbert even though the Village does not own it. Further, he asked the Manager to have
dtaff approach the owner at 1122 Curtiss to explain the plan for Curtiss and ask them if they want
to be included.

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 6



Commissioner Sisul suggested making a note in the RFP to include these properties.

Jeff Mack, 1111 Gilbert, said he would like to be included in the RFP. He said heis pleased to
see how people have come together.

Jim Fechner, 1141 Curtiss, said he was here with his neighbor, Mike Salelak of 1137 Curtiss.
He said there has not been much discussion about the Curtiss Street landbank properties. He said
heisin support of the proposal presented. He said they do not want a condominium building.

Commissioner Schnell said she agrees with reviewing the Concentrated Central Area and
rezoning the properties. She suggested writing to the residents in the CCA and those whose
properties are zoned R-6 and get a sense of what they want. She said this might lend itself to one
rezoning for all of the affected properties.

The Mayor said the Zoning Commission will address thisissue at their next meeting. He
suggested a mailing to the residents in the affected area to notify them of the Zoning Commission
meeting and the agenda items.

Commissioner Schnell said it is extremely important to communicate with the area residents.

Commissioner Sisul said the Council has had a program assigning Council members as
neighborhood liaisons to a particular area. The Council member is assigned not to become an
advocate for the group or to make commitments on the part of the Council, but rather to provide
information and to keep the Council apprised. He suggested reviving this practice.

Commissioner Gilbert clarified that two RFPs would be prepared. The Mayor said within the
second one, homeowners could submit proposals for rehabilitation or reconfiguration.

The Mayor said there are six homesin the area. Staff estimates the value at $2 million. The
Mayor directed staff to move forward with the two RFPs. He asked residents to contact the
Village Manager with information about homes they feel may be appropriate and fit in the area.
He further directed staff to identify people for the review board. Staff were directed to bring the
RFPs back to Council for authorization and also directed to proceed with the Request of
Quadlifications (RFQS).

Commissioner Schnell urged the staff to be forward thinking in sending out the RFPs and RFQs
and to search for creative people.

4. Ogden Avenue TIF. The Manager said following the public hearing on November 21, 2000
the Village Council asked staff to meet with District 58 to alleviate some of their concerns.
Staff has prepared an intergovernmental agreement proposing revenue sharing with District
58. He asked Attorney Dan Blondin to address this issue.

Village Attorney Dan Blondin said the impetus for this agreement was concerns raised during
the public hearing related to the Ogden Avenue TIF in relation to its perceived potential for
negative impacts on Digtrict 58. Staff was asked to develop a revenue-sharing agreement with
District 58 to share the increments and to ensure that there were no negative impacts on District
58 tax revenues as aresult of the creation of the Ogden Avenue TIF if the Council electsto
proceed forward with the TIF.

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 7



Mr. Blondin said the culmination of the negotiations is set forth in the agreement. This addresses
the increment that would be associated with the Didtrict 58 levy. Tax increment financing works
by freezing the tax base equalized assessed vauation (EAV) within the district. It is against this
EAV that the future taxes from other taxing districts will be collected. The difference between
the frozen EAV and what the increased EAV will be over time as aresult of the TIF represents
the increment through which the tax increment financing district receives funds. Staff is
proposing that 50% of the tax increment received by the Village attributed to District 58 would
form the basis for an “educational benefit” payment to be made from the Village to District 58.
To the extent that the TIF district realizes an increase in property values, there will be a 50% base
from which these payments can be made. If thereisno increase in EAV then paymentsto
District 58 will not be made.

Mr. Blondin said this calls for the Village to make payments to District 58 from non-TIF revenue
sources. Thisisrequired as aresult of provisons within the TIF laws. Additiondly, thisisa 23-
year agreement and will extend throughout the life of the TIF aswill the TIF district.

Mr. Blondin said the agreement has been agreed to in concept by District 58.

Regarding the ordinances, Mr. Blondin said the public hearing was held on November 21, 2000.
Under the Tax Increment Financing Act the ordinances creating the TIF must be presented within
90 days. Mr. Blondin said the window will expire February 13, 2001. He said he would present
three ordinances tonight to designate the district area, adopt the plan and adopt tax increment
financing within the district area. He suggested Council place this on the February 6 Active
Agenda along with the District 58 intergovernmental agreement. He said he anticipates that the
ordinance will not be filed with the County Clerk until the Village can assure that the tax year that
will establish the base will be 2000. That filing would occur on approximately April 1, 2001.

Mr. Blondin said there is a proposal for a change order to the Kane, McKenna contract to
recognize additional services they have performed primarily in negotiating the District 58
agreement. They provided the Village with a wealth of technical information regarding the
impact and conducting analyses of growth and their effect on the revenues received by the
District.

The Mayor said if the Council declared a surplus and sent the increment back to all of the taxing
bodies, District 58 would get their surplus, but in this scenario he would like to ensure that the
Village does not aso have to pay the 50% addressed in the agreement.

Mr. Blondin said this would be addressed in the agreement by proposing language that the
Village would reduce the amount of the payments by such an amount as any surplus received so
they would never receive more than 50% or the surplus.

Commissioner Gilbert said under a scenario of moderate growth the exposure the Village genera
fund would have is approximately $3.5 million. If the TIF does worse the exposure is lower, and
if the TIF does better, the exposure is higher. He asked if the exposure is offset by those
expenses the Village would have committed to Ogden Avenue that the Village no longer hasto
commit to due to the TIF funds. The Manager said that was correct.

Commissioner Gilbert asked if it creates aworse scenario for the Village if the TIF does better
than expected.

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 8



The Mayor asked Mr. Lyons to address his andysis extending for 24 years although the TIF is for
23 years.

Marty Lyons, Director, Financia Services, the levy does not comein until the year after the start
of the TIF which means that the 24" year column is the 23° year of the TIF.

Mr. Lyons said for the TIF to do very well there will be aneed for much participation. In the
scenario of high growth, there will have to be significant investment in the infrastructure whether
by land acquisition or land improvements. At the higher degree, the money would be coming
from either the Capital Projects fund or the Ogden Avenue TIF fund. If the TIF does extremely
well, the project could cost $38 million. Staff projects the TIF to provide $24 million, a
difference of $14 million. The Capital Projects fund will be committing a significant amount to
this project. The decision is whether part of amount contributed by the Capital Projects fund goes
to the infrastructure or to this agreement with District 58. The budget is potentidly limited by
this agreement.

The Mayor said the combined increment under the moderate growth scenario is $18.6 million.
Digtrict 58's portion would be $7 million and they would get $3.5 million back. The better the
TIF does, the less money will come out of Capital Projects.

Commissioner Gilbert said he was looking to determine how the money in the general funds
would be replaced.

The Mayor said if the TIF is doing better than anticipated, there will be more money in the
increments and not as much will be required from Capital funds. The increments could increase
at a higher rate than the money being rebated back to the school district.

Commissioner Gilbert said the Village will clearly gain as this would result in an increase in sales
tax and surrounding property values.

Commissioner Schnell said there is no threshold that has to be met before the agreement is
activated unless there is no increment. Mr. Lyons confirmed that thisis afirst dollar agreement.
Mr. Lyons said there is no negative language in the agreement so if the increment went negative,
the Village would not be asking District 58 for funds back.

Commissioner Schnell said Ogden is a state road. She said the state could not use TIF funds to
improve the road, but the Village could use the funds for sidewalks and infrastructure
improvements such as water, sewer, etc.

Mr. Lyons confirmed Commissioner Schnell’ s statements and said the god for the staging of this
project will be different that the CBD. Staff would want to stage infrastructure improvements
with the state schedule for road improvements.

The Manager emphasized that the Village is in control of the use of the TIF funds and the Illinois
Department of Transportation cannot use them.

Mr. Lyons said our commitment may cause the state to begin their own improvements. The TIF
funds could qualify as local matching funds for state projects requiring them.

The Manager said he has met with IDOT officials so they are aware of what the Village is doing.

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 9



Commissioner Schnell asked if a revenue source has been identified for the District 58
agreement. Mr. Lyons said that although a source has not yet been identified, he did clarify that it
does not need to be a new type of tax. The growth from the overall development of Ogden
Avenue could result in a higher business level and increased sales tax which could be used to pay
the educational benefit.

Commissioner Schnell said she was happy to see this agreement. She said she would not have
been able to move forward with the TIF without this type of agreement. She said Dr. Martin
seems to be happy with the agreement as well.

Mr. Lyons said District 58 will be meeting on January 29 and will discuss this.

Vickie Nissen, Assistant Superintendent for Business, School District 58, said aresolution
regarding this is on the agenda.

Commissioner Sisul said thisis an extraordinary agreement. It is an emphasis of the Village's
commitment to District 58 and the schools.

Mr. Lyons said the agreement istied to the District. Should the TIF District be closed, the
agreement would also be closed.

Pat Burke, 1320 Oak Hill Drive, asked if the base from which the basdine tax is determined is
inflation adjusted.

The Mayor said one scenario is 2% growth, which isinflation. That would represent an
increment and half would go back to the school. The base stays the same for al 23 years. The
increment will go up more if there is redevel opment.

Ms. Burke asked about the circumstances under which the TIF could be dissolved. She dso
asked about the source of funds to reimbursement District 58.

The Mayor said there are reopening clauses in the agreement. |f the state changes the way they
fund District 58, that would constitute a reopening of this agreement. Regarding the
reimbursement, if nothing develops on Ogden, there would be very little increment and the
Village share would be low. If it is more successful, the money would be in the Capita Projects
fund to pay District 58.

Martin Tully, 3678 Venard, said he applauds the Council and staff for working on this
agreement. He encouraged adoption of the agreement if the Council decides to go forward with
the TIF. Mr. Tully asked why the payment to District 58 cannot come from TIF funds.

Mr. Blondin said state law would require the Village to deal with al other taxing districtsin the
same manner if the reimbursement were paid using TIF revenues. District is 58 is unique in that
more than 80% of their revenues come from property taxes and they are nearly co-terminus with
the corporate limits of the Village. Therefore Ogden Avenue represents to them a proportionately
higher part of their entire property tax base than it would be for other taxing districts.

Mr. Tully referred to Section 5, paragraph 3 of the agreement referencing TIF assisted housing.

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 10



Mr. Blondin said District 58 requested this be included, but there is no anticipation that this
would be applicable. There are no plansin the redevelopment plan to include that kind of
development.

Mr. Tully referred to Section 5, paragraph 1 and applauded the inclusion of the provision of each
party to appoint aliaison to work with the other party. It isagood step in continuing the
communication and cooperation that has been established.

Regarding the change order with Kane, McKenna, Mr. Tully referenced additional analyses done
by the consultant. He asked if this information is available at the library.

Mr. Lyons said he will try to organize the scenarios into a packet to place in the library.

Stephen Daniels, 840 Vdley View, said he was a candidate for Council in the April election. He
said he had questions about the costs. He said the tax revenue from the TIF will not pay for all
the estimated costs. He asked if the $38 million figure of estimated costsis afirm figure and if it
istied to aplan.

The Mayor said the ordinance to adopt the plan is one of the ordinances to be adopted to create
the TIF. Some development occurs that cannot be anticipated. He said 21 sites have been
identified for potential development and 13 devel opers have been talking about projects on
Ogden. The planning process will evolve as developers are interested. The cost may vary as
well.

Commissioner Schnell said the Lakota Plan looked at Ogden Avenue regarding streetscape,
sidewalks, signage, etc. These improvements will enhance the beauty and safety of Ogden
Avenue and are included in the plan.

Ms. Burke asked about worse case scenarios. If the TIF does not substantially enhance property
values beyond what would have occurred without the TIF, the school district would get 50% vs.
100% enhancement in their income. She asked how much of the District 58 taxes come from the
propertiesin the TIF digtrict.

The Mayor said it is 2%. If there is zero growth, the school will not be affected. The planisto
make sure the school district is not hurt on new growth. Without the agreement, the school
district would lose out on al new growth on Ogden Avenue. The school tax caps affects this as
well.

Ms. Nissen said without the agreement District 58 would be locked out of new growth. Thiswas
their biggest concern.

The Manager said the ordinances would be placed on the February 6 Active Agenda and the
change order would be placed on the February 6 Consent Agenda.

5. Grant Requests:

a. Heavy Rescue Vehiclefor Fire Department. The Manager said thisis the third of four
separate grant agreements from the lllinois Department of Commerce and Community
Affairs (DCCA) as part of the Illinois First Member Initiative funding program. The
agreements will total $275,000 and will go toward the purchase of a heavy rescue squad
vehicle for the Fire Department. The cost of the vehicleis estimated in the range of

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 11



$350,000 to $375,000. The Manager thanked Mayor Krajewski, Representatives Bellock
and Persico and Senators Roskam and Dillard. This particular grant was sponsored by
Senator Roskam.

The Manager said this resolution will be on the February 6 Active Agenda.

b. Two Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) Grant
Applications. The Manager said these are grant applications to be submitted to the
Chicago Area Transportation Study group. He asked Susan Brassfield to review the
applications.

Susan Brassfield, Grants Coordinator, said Financial Services is recommending the submission
of two Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ) program grants to the
Chicago Area Transportation Study. The first grant will support bikeway improvements of the
Centra Corridor Route. This major north-south route consists of Lemont/Dunham Road from
75" Street to downtown and Saratoga Avenue from 31% Street to downtown. The total estimated
project cost is $109,000 of which the grant will support $87,200 and the Village will support
$21,800.

The second CMAQ program grant will support the replacement of two of the Villages transit
coaches with compressed natural gas coaches. Thetotal estimated purchase price is $250,000 of
which the grant will support $200,000 and the Village will support $50,000. Credit of the CMAQ
grant applications should be given to Stan Balicki, Projects Coordinator, of Public Works.

The Mayor asked about the status of the natural gas facility. Mr. Sprecher said he anticipates
approvd finalization within the next couple of weeks.

In response to the Mayor, the Manager said only a short period is needed to put the facility up.
Commissioner Schnell asked if the increase in the cost of natural gas will offset the benefit. The
Manager said the Village is mandated to move in this direction. Commissioner Schnell asked that
an anaysis be done to determine the cost. Regarding the bikeway plan, she said she was happy to
see the Village moving forward.

Mr. Tully asked about the capacity of the natural gas buses.

Stan Balicki, Administrative Assistant, Public Works, said the passenger capacity is in the 30-35
person range depending on the make, model and configuration.

The Mayor said most of the commuter buses are not filled to capacity. He referred to a senior
citizen survey on transportation and suggested at looking at using one of these buses to run
certain routes from senior citizen facilities on a designated day. He adso said Ms. Brassfield is
working with IDOT on funding for transportation for seniors and disabled persons.

The Manager said thiswill be on the February 6 Active Agenda.

6. Final Payment and Renewal of Promissory Note from DuPage Mayors & Managers
Conference. The Manager asked Mr. Lyons to discuss this item.

Mr. Lyons said thisincludes two items. Oneis a resolution requested by the DuPage Mayors &
Managers formally acknowledging full payment of the promissory note originally issued in 1992.

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 12



The DuPage Mayors & Managers has paid on time and the Village has had no problem with the
prompt paydown of the note. DuPage Mayors & Managers currently has aneed for expansion
which isindicative of their success as a council of government. They are looking to renovate
their facilities at a borrowing cost of $1.5 million. They are requesting that the Village participate
in anot greater than 1/10 share of that debt. 1t would be on the Village' s balance sheet as a
designated asset. It is an investment that will pay interest. The Village will be acting as the
lending agency.

The Mayor said there are 20 state senators and representatives in DuPage County. The Mayors
have been meeting with them in an attempt to get them to commit $50,000 each to the cost of the
project. Thiswould leave $500,000 for the rest of the Villages in DuPage County to fund. He
said $650, 000 has been committed so far by the legidators.

Mr. Lyons said final documentation will be forthcoming based on participation.
The Manager said this will be on the February 6 Active Agenda.

7. Extend Planned Development Preliminary Site Plan — Downers Park Shopping Center.
The Manager asked Ken Rathje to address this issue.

Ken Rathje, Director, Planning Services, said thisis an annua request related to two parcels that
are part of Planned Unit Development 18. One parcel is 2.07 acres located on the west side of
Main Street at 73 Street. The original planned development approval restricted the use of that
ste to an office use only as opposed to generd retail in deference to the residential areato the
east. The other siteisasmall, Yacre site. Neither site has been developed by the owners of the
property. They have maintained their preliminary approva and thisis their most recent yearly
request.

Commissioner Sisul said this has come before the Council many times. He said this does not
seem to be a high priority with the property owners. Mr. Rathje said there have been some other
possihilities discussed. The ownersfed it is prudent to extend the preliminary site plan approval.

The Mayor said he, the Village Manager and Steve Rockwell, Director of Economic
Development, met with the property manager of this property who said they are currently
working with Dominick’s who is looking to expand.

The Manager said thiswill be on the February 6 Active Agenda.

8. Morningside Agreement — Utilities. The Manager said thisis a development agreement
regarding burying utility linesin the aley to the north of their building. He asked Mr.
Blondin is discuss this matter.

Mr. Blondin said this relates to the Morningside Condominium building on Main Street south of
Maple. The approva of the planned development called for Morningside to construct an access
drive from Main Street on the north side. Half of the access drive will be on their property and
half will be on apublic dley. They have agreed to pave the public aley to alow arear access for
anumber of parcelsthat front onto Maple Avenue. To accomplish this, Morningside needs to
give the Village an easement over their portion of the property to allow for public access. They
aso need to commit to build and maintain the access drive, including snowplowing. In return the
Village has agreed to waive certain building permits and to underground utilities that are located
where the access drive is on the north side of the Morningside property. The cost to underground

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 13



the utilities is not to exceed $25,000.00. Morningside will give the Village an easement over the
portion of the access drive located on their property to ensure that public access will be permitted
aslong asthe drive isthere.

Mr. Blondin recommended placing this item on the February 6 Active Agenda

MANAGER’'S REPORT

The Manager said the Village was recently awarded two grants. Senator Durbin announced that
the Village received a pilot project grant for $27,000 to be used for education and enforcement
effortsin regard to rail safety and railroad and street intersections. He said given the Village's
effortsin concert with the DuPage Mayors & Managers Conference regarding the proposed
changes in whistle blowing regulations throughout the Chicago area, anything the Village can do
to enhance rail safety and maintain a quiet zone will only improve the life of our community.

The Mayor said the ICC is matching those funds. He said in addition to Downers Grove,
Arlington Heights, Bartlett and Macomb have been awarded these funds to develop a safety
enforcement program

The Manager said the Village received natification of a grant for $600,000 through the US
Department of Justice COPS grant. Thiswill alow the Village to hire eight additional police
officers. He said the Village will look at creating a traffic unit and enhancing other community
policing efforts. He said heis very pleased with this and is looking forward to its
implementation.

The Mayor thanked Congressvoman Biggert and the staff.
ATTORNEY'S REPORT

The Attorney presented the following items. 1) aresolution authorizing an
intergovernmental agreement with Didtrict 58 re: Ogden Avenue TIF. He said he would
be making a number of minor revisions to this based on comments received tonight. 2)
An ordinance approving the Ogden Avenue Corridor Redevelopment Plan and Project; 3)
an ordinance designating the Ogden Avenue Corridor Redevelopment Project Area; 4)

an ordinance adopting tax increment financing in connection with the designation of the
Ogden Avenue Redevelopment Project Area. Items 2, 3 & 4 establish the Ogden Avenue
TIF. Filing of these documents will be delayed until the Village is certain that the base
year will be 2000. 5) A resolution accepting public improvements for SNS Subdivision;
6) aresolution authorizing a grant to the lllinois Department of Natural Resources
administered by the Conservation Foundation re: Linden Heights; 7) aresolution
approving an intergovernmental agreement with DuPage County re: Lacey Creek Water
Quality Improvement Project; 8) aresolution authorizing submittal of a grant application
to the Chicago Area Transportation Study for the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality
Improvement Program re: bikeway improvements; 9) a resolution authorizing submittal
of agrant application to the Chicago Area Transportation Study for the Congestion
Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program re: Purchase of two natural gas buses;
and 10) aresolution authorizing execution of a redevelopment agreement with 5329
Investor, L.P. He said thisis the Morningside project. Mr. Blondin said there will be
additional items on the agenda he is not prepared to present tonight. He said he would
identify them at the time and ask the Council to waive the one week waiting period.
These will include the release of the DuPage Mayors & Managers agreement as well as

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 14



authorizing execution of the new DuPage Mayors & Managers agreement, and
authorizing the grant application for the heavy rescue vehicle for the Fire Department.

COUNCIL MEMBERS

Commissioner McConnell provided an update on the Character Devel opment Coalition meeting
held last week. She said she was very pleased with the turnout and participation. She said they
arein the process of putting together an action plan. It is a seven step plan and they are working
on the first two steps. The next meeting is on Thursday, February 15, 2001 in the Public Works
Facility, 5101 Walnut, from 7:00 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. She said they are interested in more board
members from various congtituencies in the Village as well as some residents and children.

Commissioner Gilbert said there are some significant changes forthcoming with respect to
assignment of Medicare payments of ambulance bills. He asked that staff get more information
regarding this. He said there would be tighter controls regarding how much and to whom
payments can be made for ambulance services.

Commissioner Sisul referred to alegal casein Lisle and the need to review procedures. In
addition to reviewing Council procedures, he recommended reviewing those of al boards and
commissions regarding increasing participation of citizens. He recommended doing both at the
sametime.

The Mayor asked the Attorney to send the memo to the boards and commissions.
Attorney Blondin said it only impacts public hearings. Most of the Village's boards and
commissions conduct many public meetings but very few public hearings. He said he will send

out a memo and will identify the difference between a public hearing and a public meeting as
well as suggesting some procedural provisions.

ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Schnell moved to adjourn to Executive Session pursuant to Section 2(c) 5 of the
Open Meetings Act to consider redl estate. Commissioner Sisul seconded.

VOTE: YEA: Commissioners Schnell, Sisul, Gilbert, McConnell, Mayor
KrajewskKi
NAY: None

Mayor Krajewski declared the motion carried and the Council convened into Executive Session at
8:50 p.m.

April K. Holden
Village Clerk

Workshop Minutes — January 23, 2001 15



